



TELECOMMUNICATION STANDARDIZATION SECTOR OF ITU

SERIES Y: GLOBAL INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE, INTERNET PROTOCOL ASPECTS, NEXT-GENERATION NETWORKS, INTERNET OF THINGS AND SMART CITIES

Internet of things and smart cities and communities – Requirements and use cases

Internet of things requirements for support of edge computing

Recommendation ITU-T Y.4208

T-U-T



ITU-T Y-SERIES RECOMMENDATIONS

GLOBAL INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE, INTERNET PROTOCOL ASPECTS, NEXT-GENERATION NETWORKS, INTERNET OF THINGS AND SMART CITIES

GLOBAL INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE	
General	Y.100-Y.199
Services, applications and middleware	Y.200-Y.299
Network aspects	Y.300-Y.399
Interfaces and protocols	Y.400-Y.499
Numbering, addressing and naming	Y.500-Y.599
Operation, administration and maintenance	Y.600-Y.699
Security	Y.700-Y.799
Performances	Y.800-Y.899
INTERNET PROTOCOL ASPECTS	
General	Y.1000-Y.1099
Services and applications	Y.1100-Y.1199
Architecture, access, network capabilities and resource management	Y.1200-Y.1299
Transport	Y.1300-Y.1399
Interworking	Y.1400–Y.1499
Quality of service and network performance	Y.1500–Y.1599
Signalling	Y.1600-Y.1699
Operation, administration and maintenance	Y.1700–Y.1799
Charging	Y.1800–Y.1899
IPTV over NGN	Y.1900–Y.1999
NEXT GENERATION NETWORKS	
Frameworks and functional architecture models	Y.2000-Y.2099
Quality of Service and performance	Y.2100-Y.2199
Service aspects: Service capabilities and service architecture	Y.2200-Y.2249
Service aspects: Interoperability of services and networks in NGN	Y.2250-Y.2299
Enhancements to NGN	Y.2300-Y.2399
Network management	Y.2400-Y.2499
Network control architectures and protocols	Y.2500-Y.2599
Packet-based Networks	Y.2600–Y.2699
Security	Y.2700–Y.2799
Generalized mobility	Y.2800–Y.2899
Carrier grade open environment	Y.2900–Y.2999
FUTURE NETWORKS	Y.3000-Y.3499
CLOUD COMPUTING	Y.3500–Y.3999
INTERNET OF THINGS AND SMART CITIES AND COMMUNITIES	1.3300-1.3777
General	Y.4000-Y.4049
Definitions and terminologies	Y.4050–Y.4099
Requirements and use cases	Y.4050-Y.4099 Y.4100-Y.4249
Infrastructure, connectivity and networks	Y.4250–Y.4399
Frameworks, architectures and protocols	Y.4400–Y.4549
Services, applications, computation and data processing	Y.4550–Y.4699
Management, control and performance	Y.4700-Y.4799
Identification and security	Y.4800-Y.4899
Evaluation and assessment	Y.4900-Y.4999

For further details, please refer to the list of ITU-T Recommendations.

Recommendation ITU-T Y.4208

Internet of things requirements for support of edge computing

Summary

Some of the capabilities offered by the Internet of thing (IoT), e.g., capabilities for computing, storage and analytics, are evolving in closer proximity to IoT data sources. Recommendation ITU-T Y.4208 provides an overview of related challenges faced by the IoT and describes how IoT-supporting edge computing (EC) may address these challenges. From the edge-computing deployment perspective, service requirements for support of EC capabilities in the IoT are identified, as well as related functional requirements. As an example, scenarios of EC deployment in different application domains, EC scenarios for vehicle-to-everything (V2X) and for smart manufacturing are provided in an appendix.

History

Edition	Recommendation	Approval	Study Group	Unique ID*
1.0	ITU-T Y.4208	2020-01-13	20	11.1002/1000/14162

Keywords

Edge computing, functional requirements, IoT requirements, service requirements.

i

^{*} To access the Recommendation, type the URL http://handle.itu.int/ in the address field of your web browser, followed by the Recommendation's unique ID. For example, <u>http://handle.itu.int/11.1002/1000/11</u> <u>830-en</u>.

FOREWORD

The International Telecommunication Union (ITU) is the United Nations specialized agency in the field of telecommunications, information and communication technologies (ICTs). The ITU Telecommunication Standardization Sector (ITU-T) is a permanent organ of ITU. ITU-T is responsible for studying technical, operating and tariff questions and issuing Recommendations on them with a view to standardizing telecommunications on a worldwide basis.

The World Telecommunication Standardization Assembly (WTSA), which meets every four years, establishes the topics for study by the ITU-T study groups which, in turn, produce Recommendations on these topics.

The approval of ITU-T Recommendations is covered by the procedure laid down in WTSA Resolution 1.

In some areas of information technology which fall within ITU-T's purview, the necessary standards are prepared on a collaborative basis with ISO and IEC.

NOTE

In this Recommendation, the expression "Administration" is used for conciseness to indicate both a telecommunication administration and a recognized operating agency.

Compliance with this Recommendation is voluntary. However, the Recommendation may contain certain mandatory provisions (to ensure, e.g., interoperability or applicability) and compliance with the Recommendation is achieved when all of these mandatory provisions are met. The words "shall" or some other obligatory language such as "must" and the negative equivalents are used to express requirements. The use of such words does not suggest that compliance with the Recommendation is required of any party.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

ITU draws attention to the possibility that the practice or implementation of this Recommendation may involve the use of a claimed Intellectual Property Right. ITU takes no position concerning the evidence, validity or applicability of claimed Intellectual Property Rights, whether asserted by ITU members or others outside of the Recommendation development process.

As of the date of approval of this Recommendation, ITU had not received notice of intellectual property, protected by patents, which may be required to implement this Recommendation. However, implementers are cautioned that this may not represent the latest information and are therefore strongly urged to consult the TSB patent database at <u>http://www.itu.int/ITU-T/ipr/</u>.

© ITU 2020

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, by any means whatsoever, without the prior written permission of ITU.

Table of Contents

Page

1	Scope		
2	References		
3	Definitions		1
	3.1	Terms defined elsewhere	1
	3.2	Terms defined in this Recommendation	2
4	Abbrevi	ations and acronyms	2
5	Conventions		
6	Introduction of edge computing in the Internet of things		3
	6.1	Concept of edge computing	3
	6.2	Internet of things challenges	3
	6.3	Addressing the Internet of things challenges	5
7	Service requirements from an edge-computing deployment perspective		5
	7.1	Edge-computing deployment perspective	6
	7.2	Service requirements for support of edge-computing capabilities in the Internet of things	6
8	Functional requirements of the Internet of things to support edge computing		7
	8.1	Data management requirements	7
	8.2	Functional requirements to support service provisioning	8
	8.3	Application support requirements	8
	8.4	Management requirements	8
Appen		Detailed scenarios of edge computing in the Internet of things related to t application domains	10
	I.1	Edge-computing scenarios for vehicle-to-everything	10
	I.2	Edge-computing scenarios for smart manufacturing	12
Biblio	graphy		13

Recommendation ITU-T Y.4208

Internet of things requirements for support of edge computing

1 Scope

This Recommendation provides service requirements from an edge-computing (EC) deployment perspective. This Recommendation also specifies functional requirements of the Internet of things (IoT) for support of EC.

The scope of this Recommendation includes:

- introduction of EC into the IoT;
- service requirements from an edge-computing deployment perspective;
- functional requirements of the IoT for support of EC.

Some detailed scenarios of EC in the IoT related to different application domains are provided in Appendix I.

2 References

The following ITU-T Recommendations and other references contain provisions which, through reference in this text, constitute provisions of this Recommendation. At the time of publication, the editions indicated were valid. All Recommendations and other references are subject to revision; users of this Recommendation are therefore encouraged to investigate the possibility of applying the most recent edition of the Recommendations and other references listed below. A list of the currently valid ITU-T Recommendations is regularly published. The reference to a document within this Recommendation does not give it, as a stand-alone document, the status of a Recommendation.

[ITU-T Q.1742.11]	Recommendation ITU-T Q.1742.11 (2014), <i>IMT 2000 references (approved as of 31 December 2012) to ANSI-41-evolved core network with cdma2000 access network.</i>
[ITU-T Y.4000]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4000/Y.2060 (2012), Overview of the Internet of things.
[ITU-T Y.4100]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4100/Y.2066 (2014), Common requirements of the Internet of things.
[ITU-T Y.4101]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4101/Y.2067 (2017), Common requirements and capabilities of a gateway for Internet of things applications.
[ITU-T Y.4113]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4113 (2016), Requirements of the network for the Internet of things.
[ITU-T Y.4114]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4114 (2017), Specific requirements and capabilities of the Internet of things for big data.
[ITU-T Y.4401]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4401 (2015), <i>Functional framework and capabilities</i> of the Internet of things.

3 Definitions

3.1 Terms defined elsewhere

This Recommendation uses the following terms defined elsewhere:

3.1.1 access network [ITU-T Q.1742.11]: Network that connects access technologies (such as a radio access network) to the core network.

3.1.2 core network [b-ITU-T Y.101]: A portion of the delivery system composed of networks, systems equipment and infrastructures, connecting the service providers to the access network.

3.1.3 device [ITU-T Y.4000]: With regard to the Internet of things, this is a piece of equipment with the mandatory capabilities of communication and the optional capabilities of sensing, actuation, data capture, data storage and data processing.

3.1.4 gateway [ITU-T Y.4101]: A unit in the Internet of things which interconnects the devices with the communication networks. It performs the necessary translation between the protocols used in the communication networks and those used by devices.

3.1.5 Internet of things (IoT) [ITU-T Y.4000]: A global infrastructure for the information society, enabling advanced services by interconnecting (physical and virtual) things based on existing and evolving interoperable information and communication technologies.

NOTE 1 – Through the exploitation of identification, data capture, processing and communication capabilities, the IoT makes full use of things to offer services to all kinds of applications, whilst ensuring that security and privacy requirements are fulfilled.

NOTE 2 – From a broader perspective, the IoT can be perceived as a vision with technological and societal implications.

3.1.6 IoT area network [ITU-T Y.4113]: A network of devices for the IoT and gateways interconnected through local connections.

NOTE – This definition is based on "Overview of the Internet of things" [ITU-T Y.4000], where clause 6.2 states "devices can communicate with other devices using direct communication through a local network (i.e., a network providing local connectivity between devices and between devices and a gateway, such as an ad-hoc network)".

3.2 Terms defined in this Recommendation

None.

4 Abbreviations and acronyms

EC	Edge Computing
eNB	evolved Node Base
EPC	Evolved Packet Core
ETC	Electronic Toll Collection
IoT	Internet of Things
OPC	Object linking and embedding for Process Control
QoS	Quality of Service
RSU	Roadside Unit
UE	User Equipment
V2I	Vehicle-to-Infrastructure
V2N	Vehicle-to-Network
V2P	Vehicle-to-Pedestrian
V2V	Vehicle-to-Vehicle
V2X	Vehicle-to-Everything

5 Conventions

In this Recommendation:

The keywords "**is required to**" indicate a requirement which must be strictly followed and from which no deviation is permitted if conformance to this document is to be claimed.

The keywords "**is recommended**" indicate a requirement which is recommended but which is not absolutely required. Thus, this requirement need not be present to claim conformance.

The keywords "**can optionally**" and "**may**" indicate an optional requirement which is permissible, without implying any sense of being recommended. These terms are not intended to imply that the vendor's implementation must provide the option and the feature can be optionally enabled by the network operator/service provider. Rather, it means the vendor may optionally provide the feature and still claim conformance with the specification.

6 Introduction of edge computing in the Internet of things

6.1 Concept of edge computing

Some of the capabilities offered by the IoT, e.g., for computing, storage and analytics, are evolving in close proximity to IoT data sources.

For the purposes of this Recommendation, IoT data usually comes via devices and gateways. IoT devices or gateways may need to have computing, storage and intelligence support from IoT platform(s) or IoT application server(s). Compared to capabilities for computing, storage and intelligence accessed via the core network, EC enables deployment in proximity to IoT data sources and may provide IoT services with increased performance. Examples of increased performance include lower service response delay, higher service reliability and higher service access capacity.

IoT requirements for support of EC may differ depending on context (e.g., applications and network technologies). EC is intended to offer flexibility (e.g., related to performance, deployment models and applications) with respect to identified needs. It is important to assess which service and functional requirements are needed in a given context. For example, not all IoT technical components may require capabilities related to support of EC.

A number of efforts (and technical standards) are currently devoted to EC technical aspects from different perspectives, e.g., [b-ECC] [b-EdgeX] [b-IIC] [b-MEC] and [b-OECI].

6.2 Internet of things challenges

To identify the requirements of the IoT to support EC, the IoT challenges described in clauses 6.2.1 and 6.2.2 need to be investigated.

6.2.1 Challenges faced by the Internet of things network

[ITU-T Y.4113] specifies a basic model of the network for the IoT, as shown in Figure 1. Multiple network technologies can be used as the IoT area network, access network and core network [ITU-T Y.4113].



Figure 1 – Basic model of the network for the Internet of things [ITU-T Y.4113]

[ITU-T Y.4113] identifies general IoT network issues, including:

- packet loss and higher latency due to simultaneous data transmission;
- unreliability of short-range radio communications in the IoT area network;
- network overload due to the large amount of traffic to be processed.

In the basic model of the network for the IoT, heavy computing, storage and intelligence capabilities are typically deployed on IoT platforms or IoT application servers accessed via the core network, and light computing, storage and intelligence capabilities are typically deployed locally in the IoT device and the gateway, as shown in Figure 2.



Figure 2 – Typical computing, storage and intelligence capabilities deployment under the basic model of the network for the Internet of things

To support EC, the IoT may need to be enhanced to support computing, storage and intelligence capabilities evolving in closer proximity to IoT data sources. With this support from the IoT, the computing, storage and intelligence capabilities distribution enables a new deployment model, as shown in Figure 3.



Figure 3 – New computing, storage and intelligence capabilities deployment model supported by enhanced Internet of things infrastructure

IoT infrastructure enhancement to support edge deployment may alleviate some IoT network issues identified in [ITU-T Y.4113], e.g., overload of network traffic at the core network may be decreased. However, new issues may appear, including, but not limited to:

• how to improve the capabilities of IoT technical components in order to support different service requirements at the edge;

• how to coordinate IoT technical components and assign related resources (e.g., computation, storage, network) to support EC.

The existing IoT technical components may need additional capabilities to those identified in [ITU-T Y.4113], in order to handle these new challenges, separately or in cooperation, to support EC.

6.2.2 Challenges faced by data processing in the Internet of things

[ITU-T Y.4114] addresses IoT challenges from the IoT data ecosystem aspect, including:

- fulfilment of different service requirements;
- being interoperable;
- being scalable and flexible;
- efficient usage of IoT data.

Due to IoT infrastructure enhancement, some IoT network issues identified in [ITU-T Y.4114], e.g., meeting different transmission latency requirements, may be relieved. However, new issues may appear for big data processing in the IoT, including, but not limited to:

- collection, pre-processing, storage, querying, analysis, transfer and visualization [ITU-T Y.4114] of data across IoT data sources, IoT platform(s) and application server(s) deployed in proximity to IoT data sources, as well as across IoT platform(s) and application server(s) deployed remotely from data sources;
- splitting and assignment of relevant big data processing tasks to different IoT technical components in order to meet service requirements;
- protection of data from unauthorized usage by newly introduced IoT platform(s) and application server(s) deployed in proximity to data sources.

6.3 Addressing the Internet of things challenges

Clauses 6.3.1 and 6.3.2 describe how IoT-supporting EC may address the identified IoT challenges.

6.3.1 Help reducing data overload

IoT-supporting EC may reduce data overload by buffering, storage and processing of data in IoT devices or gateways at the edge of the network. So, it can help to reduce data overload in data centres, mitigating big data challenges faced by data intensive IoT applications.

6.3.2 Enabling more flexible service provisioning

IoT-supporting EC may provide more flexible services by analysing data in IoT devices or gateways at the edge of network. Distributing data analysis and service-provisioning capabilities to IoT devices or gateways may be based on service-provisioning rules customized by IoT users or applications.

7 Service requirements from an edge-computing deployment perspective

This clause focuses on service requirements of the IoT [ITU-T Y.4000] to support EC. Service requirements are described from a deployment perspective [ITU-T Y.4401].

Based on the service requirements identified in this clause, clause 8 describes functional requirements from the angle of which logical functionalities IoT technical components need in order to fulfil service requirements.

Appendix I provides some detailed scenarios of EC in the IoT related to different application domains in support to the requirements identified in this clause and clause 8.

7.1 Edge-computing deployment perspective

From a deployment perspective, the IoT technical components [ITU-T Y.4113] – as shown in Figure 4 – may need to support requirements corresponding to EC enablement.



Figure 4 – Service requirements from an EC deployment perspective

- (1) IoT device [ITU-T Y.4000]: In order to support EC enablement, IoT devices may need to enhance their capabilities related to computation, storage and connectivity, for example.
- (2) IoT area network [ITU-T Y.4113]: The IoT area network may need to enhance its capabilities, e.g., in terms of reliability, bandwidth and latency, in order to fulfil EC-related service requirements. Vehicle-to-vehicle (V2V) scenarios described in Appendix I are examples of these IoT area network requirements.
- (3) Gateway [ITU-T Y.4101]: In order to support EC, apart from common capabilities [ITU-T Y.4101], the gateway may need to enhance its capabilities, e.g., in terms of computation, storage and connectivity.
- (4) Access network [ITU-T Q.1742.11]: In order to support EC, the access network may need to enhance its network capabilities.
- (5) Edge platform: in order to support EC, some IoT capabilities move from IoT platform(s) and IoT application server(s) to a new IoT technical component, the edge platform. Cooperation between edge platforms, gateways, devices, IoT platforms or IoT application servers may be needed.

NOTE – The edge platform is usually a kind of cloud platform.

7.2 Service requirements for support of edge-computing capabilities in the Internet of things

7.2.1 Service requirements for Internet of things devices

(1) The IoT device is recommended to have computing and storage capabilities to support the processing of collected data directly, with or without help from gateway(s) or edge platform(s). Vehicle-to-infrastructure (V2I) and vehicle-to-network (V2N) scenarios described in clause I.1 are examples of these IoT device requirements.

7.2.2 Service requirements for the gateway

(1) The gateway is recommended to provide capabilities to support the performance balance among IoT devices, e.g., for computation, storage and network consumption. For example,

if one or more IoT devices managed by the gateway are overloaded, the gateway can assign related tasks to other managed IoT devices for relief. Smart manufacturing scenarios described in clause I.2 are examples of these IoT gateway requirements.

- (2) The gateway is recommended to support collaboration among IoT devices to support requirements corresponding to EC enablement.
- (3) The gateway may support collaboration with other gateways to support requirements corresponding to EC enablement.
- (4) If IoT device(s) connect(s) to the access network via the gateway, the gateway is recommended to support context awareness, e.g., context information at connectivity and application levels.

7.2.3 Service requirements for the edge platform

- (1) Depending on service requirements, the edge platform may support time-sensitive applications.
- (2) Depending on service requirements, the edge platform is recommended to support applications with different service requirements, e.g., bandwidth, storage or computation.
- (3) Depending on service requirements, the edge platform is recommended to support multiple network interfaces and application interfaces in order to support connection between elements, e.g., an IoT device, gateway, edge platform, IoT platform and IoT application server.
- (4) Depending on service requirements, the edge platform may provide IoT applications with the location of IoT devices. The V2N scenarios described in Appendix I are examples of this requirement.
- (5) Depending on service requirements, the edge platform may support high integrity and availability applications. The V2I, V2V and V2N scenarios in Appendix I are examples of this requirement.

7.2.4 Service requirements for the Internet of things area network

The IoT area network is recommended to be enhanced, including enabling transmission latency and connection fault probability reduction. The V2V, V2P and V2I scenarios described in Appendix I are examples of these IoT area network requirements.

7.2.5 Service requirements for the access network

The access network may support flexible network capabilities as necessary and appropriate in IoT for support of EC.

The V2N scenario described in Appendix I is an example of access network capabilities.

8 Functional requirements of the Internet of things to support edge computing

The categories of functional requirements of the IoT to support EC in clauses 8.1 to 8.4 are based on the categories of IoT common requirement specified in [ITU-T Y.4100].

8.1 Data management requirements

As described in [ITU-T Y.4100], data management requirements refer to the functional requirements for storage, aggregation, transfer and processing of IoT data. The enhanced data management requirements of the IoT to support EC are as described in clauses 8.1.1 and 8.1.2.

8.1.1 Data processing at the edge of the network

According to clauses 7.2.1 entry (1), 7.2.2 entry (1), 7.2.3 entry (1) and 7.2.3 entry (2), in order to support data processing in EC, capabilities to process data at the edge of the network are required.

8.1.2 Data buffering and storage at the edge of the network

According to clauses 7.2.1 entry (1), 7.2.2 entry (1), 7.2.3 entry (1) and 7.2.3 entry (2), in order to support data buffering and storage in EC, the capabilities to buffer and store data at the edge of the network are required.

8.2 Functional requirements to support service provisioning

Service provisioning refers to the supply of services from providers to users.

8.2.1 Location awareness and location-based service provisioning

According to clause 7.2.3 entry (4), the capability to analyse location awareness data for IoT devices or gateways is recommended.

According to clause 7.2.3 entry (4), IoT devices, gateways or edge platform(s) are recommended to support location-based service provisioning.

8.2.2 Context awareness and context-based service provisioning

According to clause 7.2.3 entry (3), interface context awareness, e.g., network interface context and application interface context, is required.

According to clause 7.2.2 entry (4), the capabilities to analyse context aware data and context-based service provisioning in IoT devices or gateways are recommended.

8.3 Application support requirements

As described in [ITU-T Y.4100], application support requirements refer to the functional requirements for the development of IoT applications in different application domains. The enhanced application support requirements of the IoT to support EC are described in clauses 8.3.1 and 8.3.2.

8.3.1 Collaboration at the edge of the network

According to clauses 7.2.2 entry (2) and 7.2.2 entry (3), in order to support collaboration at the edge of the network, the capabilities to collaborate among IoT devices, gateways and the edge platform in respect of service provisioning are required.

NOTE – "Collaboration is required among services or among devices accessing, with the same goal, IoT applications, so that the IoT can enable autonomous goal-driven collaboration among such services or devices." is specified in clause 8.3.4 of" [ITU-T Y.4100].

8.3.2 Network capability exposure

According to clause 7.2.4, the IoT area network is required to be able to expose appropriate network capabilities to IoT applications according to their requirements, e.g., in order to support time-sensitive services or high-bandwidth services.

NOTE – According to clause 7.2.5, the IoT access network may expose appropriate network capabilities in IoT for support of EC.

8.4 Management requirements

As described in [ITU-T Y.4100], the IoT non-functional requirements refer to the requirements related to the implementation and operation of the IoT. Management capabilities belong to the category of IoT non-functional requirements.

8.4.1 Distributed service management

According to clauses 7.2.2 entry (2) and 7.2.2 entry (3), in order to support service management at the edge of the network, distributed service management is recommended.

NOTE – The service management functions may be distributed to multiple edge platforms from the deployment perspective.

8.4.2 Distributed account management

According to clauses 7.2.2 entry (2) and 7.2.2 entry (3), in order to support account management at the edge of the network, distributed account management is recommended.

NOTE – The account information and related operations need to be synchronized with the associated edge platform and IoT platform from the deployment perspective.

Appendix I

Detailed scenarios of edge computing in the Internet of things related to different application domains

(This appendix does not form an integral part of this Recommendation.)

I.1 Edge-computing scenarios for vehicle-to-everything

Vehicle-to-everything (V2X) [b-3GPP TS 22.185] [b-ETSI TR 102 638] is one important domain in which EC technology can be applied.

V2X applications can be classified into the following four types [b-3GPP TS 22.185]:

- vehicle-to-vehicle (V2V) applications;
- vehicle-to-infrastructure (V2I) applications;
- vehicle-to-network (V2N) applications;
- vehicle-to-pedestrian (V2P) applications.

Based on the capabilities provided by EC and their deployment, the four types of V2X applications can be enriched with more intelligent services for end-users.

I.1.1 Vehicle-to-vehicle

V2V involves vehicles in proximity to each other exchanging application information [b-3GPP TS 22.185]. In this case, EC capabilities may need to be deployed in the vehicles so that the vehicles can transmit data and handle V2V-related messages.

In V2V scenarios, vehicles connect to each other as in an IoT area network. The IoT area network may need enhanced capabilities to support V2V.

In V2V scenarios, data exchanged between vehicles should have high integrity and availability, e.g., speed and accelerated speed of the vehicles.

Figure I.1 shows a V2V scenario example.



Figure I.1 – V2V scenario example

I.1.2 Vehicle-to-infrastructure

V2I involves a vehicle with applications support exchanging messages containing application information with a roadside unit (RSU) in proximity to the vehicle or locally relevant application server [b-3GPP TS 22.185]. In this case, the RSU and the vehicle may need to deploy EC capabilities to support applications involving both the vehicle and the RSU.

In V2I scenarios, the data exchanged between the vehicle and RSU or local application server should have high integrity and availability, e.g., financial data for electronic toll collection (ETC) applications. Figure I.2 shows a V2I scenario example.



Figure I.2 – V2I scenario example

I.1.3 Vehicle-to-network

V2N involves a vehicle with applications supporting the transmission of messages containing application information to an edge platform to provide optimized network quality of service (QoS) and necessary computing and storage capabilities [b-3GPP TS 22.185], e.g., an emergency call as a V2N application needs edge platform support for car-locating capabilities. In this case, EC capabilities may need to be deployed in the vehicle and the edge application server.

In V2N scenarios, the data exchanged between the vehicle and edge platform should have high integrity and availability, e.g., driver's information and car information for emergency calls. Figure I.3 shows a V2N scenario example.



Figure I.3 – V2N scenario example

I.1.4 Vehicle-to-pedestrian

V2P involves vehicles and user equipment (UE) used by pedestrians that are in proximity to each other exchanging application information [b-3GPP TS 22.185]. The V2P applications exchange messages containing V2P information, and this exchange may be directly among vehicles and UE or may need to be supported by an RSU. In this case, EC capabilities may be deployed in the vehicle, UE and the RSU. Figure I.4 shows a V2P scenario example.



Figure I.4 – V2P scenario example

I.2 Edge-computing scenarios for smart manufacturing

For some control applications in smart manufacturing, the network transmission latency may need to be lower than 10 ms. On the other hand, the effective latency, based on practical measurements, may be higher than 100 ms in scenarios where the data needs to be transferred via a fourth generation cellular network to the cloud-hosted data centre accessed via the core network.

EC is a method of optimizing data transmission latency for central cloud-computing deployments by processing data at the edge of the network, in proximity to the data source. In smart manufacturing, EC may be used in the following two ways:

- Deploying EC at the gateway: heterogeneous industrial protocols, e.g., [b-Modbus],
 [b-PROFIBUS], object linking and embedding for process control unified architecture [b-OPC UA], cannot connect to the Internet directly. The gateway may deploy EC capabilities to provide functions such as industrial protocol conversion, data fusion and data cache to industrial terminal devices, and to provide industrial applications that may be deployed in the local cloud, as shown in Figure I.5.
- Deploying EC at the edge platform: the edge platform integrates local network, computing and storage capabilities inside the factory, and can provide industrial applications in proximity to the users, as shown in Figure I.5. Because the edge platform is deployed close to the factory, real-time connectivity and increased integrity for data processing are achieved.



eNB: evolved node base; EPC: evolved packet core Figure I.5 – Edge computing scenarios for smart manufacturing

Bibliography

[b-ITU-T Y.101]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.101 (2000), Global Information Infrastructure terminology: Terms and definitions.
[b-ITU-T Y.3105]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.3105 (2018), Requirements of capability exposure in the IMT-2020 networks.
[b-ITU-T Y.4455]	Recommendation ITU-T Y.4455 (2017), Reference architecture for Internet of things network capability exposure.
[b-IEEE 1609.0]	IEEE 1609.0-2019, <i>IEEE Guide for wireless access in vehicular environments (WAVE) architecture.</i>
[b-IEEE 802.11p]	IEEE 802.11p-2010, IEEE Standard for information technology – Local and metropolitan area networks – Specific requirements – Part 11: Wireless LAN medium access control (MAC) and physical layer (PHY) specifications – Amendment 6: Wireless access in vehicular environments.
[b-ETSI]	ETSI (2019), Multi-access Edge Computing (MEC); <i>Framework and Reference Architecture</i> .
[b-3GPP TS 22.185]	3GPP TS 22.185 V15.0.0 (2018), 3rd Generation Partnership Project; Technical specification group services and system aspects; Service requirements for V2X services; Stage 1 (Release 15).
[b-ECC]	Edge Computing Consortium (Internet). <i>Edge Computing Consortium homepage</i> . Beijing: Edge Computing Consortium. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>http://en.ecconsortium.org/</u>
[b-ECC-architecture]	ECC (2017), <i>Edge computing reference architecture</i> 2.0. Beijing: Edge Computing Consortium (ECC) and Internet Industry Alliance (IIA).
[b-EdgeX]	EdgeXFoundry (2017). <i>The World's first plug and play ecosystem-</i> <i>enabled open platform for the IoT edge</i> . San Francisco, CA: Linux Foundation. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>https://www.edgexfoundry.org/</u>
[b-ETSI TR 102 638]	ETSI TR 102 638 V1.1.1 (2009), Intelligent transport systems (ITS); Vehicular communications; Basic set of applications; Definitions.
[b-IIC]	Industrial Internet Consortium (2020), <i>Industrial Internet Consortium and OpenFog FAQ</i> . Needham, MA: Object Management Group. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>https://www.iiconsortium.org/IIC-OF-faq.htm</u>
[b-MEC]	European Telecommunications Standards Institute (2020). <i>Multi-access edge computing (MEC)</i> . Sophia Antipolis: ETSI. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>https://www.etsi.org/technologies/multi-access-edge-computing</u>
[b-Modbus]	Modbus (2005-2020). <i>Modbus homepage</i> . Hopkinton, MA: Modbus. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>http://www.modbus.org/</u>
[b-OECI]	Open Edge Computing Initiative (2020). <i>Open Edge Computing initiative</i> . Pittsburgh, PA: Open Edge Computing Initiative. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>https://www.openedgecomputing.org/</u>
[b-OPC UA]	OPC Foundation (Internet). <i>Object linking and embedding for process control unified architecture (OPC UA)</i> . Scottsdale, AZ: OPC Foundation. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: <u>https://opcfoundation.org/</u>

[b-OpenFog]	OpenFog Consortium Architecture Working Group (2017), <i>OpenFog reference architecture for fog computing</i> . Fremont, CA: OpenFog Consortium. 162 pp. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: https://www.iiconsortium.org/pdf/OpenFog_Reference_Architecture_2_09_17.pdf
[b-PROFIBUS]	PROFIBUS & PROFINET International (2020). <i>PROFIBUS</i> <i>technology and application – System description</i> . Karlsruhe: PROFIBUS Nutzerorganisation. Available [viewed 2020-03-20] at: https://www.profibus.com/download/profibus-technology-and-application-system-description/

SERIES OF ITU-T RECOMMENDATIONS

- Series A Organization of the work of ITU-T
- Series D Tariff and accounting principles and international telecommunication/ICT economic and policy issues
- Series E Overall network operation, telephone service, service operation and human factors
- Series F Non-telephone telecommunication services
- Series G Transmission systems and media, digital systems and networks
- Series H Audiovisual and multimedia systems
- Series I Integrated services digital network
- Series J Cable networks and transmission of television, sound programme and other multimedia signals
- Series K Protection against interference
- Series L Environment and ICTs, climate change, e-waste, energy efficiency; construction, installation and protection of cables and other elements of outside plant
- Series M Telecommunication management, including TMN and network maintenance
- Series N Maintenance: international sound programme and television transmission circuits
- Series O Specifications of measuring equipment
- Series P Telephone transmission quality, telephone installations, local line networks
- Series Q Switching and signalling, and associated measurements and tests
- Series R Telegraph transmission
- Series S Telegraph services terminal equipment
- Series T Terminals for telematic services
- Series U Telegraph switching
- Series V Data communication over the telephone network
- Series X Data networks, open system communications and security
- Series Y Global information infrastructure, Internet protocol aspects, next-generation networks, Internet of Things and smart cities
- Series Z Languages and general software aspects for telecommunication systems